
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          October 9, 2007 
                                                                                                                                Page 1 of 6 

 City Council Minutes 
City of Palmer, Alaska 

                      Regular Meeting 
October 9, 2007 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on October 9, 2007, at 7 p.m. in the 
council chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 7 p.m.  
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

 Mike Chmielewski   Richard Best  Brad Hanson  
 Kathrine Vanover   Ken Erbey  Tony Pippel 
 John Combs   
            
Also in attendance were the following: 
  

 Bill Allen, City Manager 
 Michael Gatti, City Attorney 
 Janette Bower, City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Chmielewski.   
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda  
a. Ordinance No. 07-026: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Title 17, Zoning, By 

Enacting Section 17.08.006, Definition for Accessory Dwelling Unit, and Enacting 
Chapter 17.86, Accessory Dwelling Units (IM 07-047) 

b. Ordinance No. 07-027: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Title 17.80.036 A., Report 
and Recommendation by Commission, Increasing the Time Frame for a Planning and 
Zoning Commission Report Regarding a Title 17 Text Amendment from 45 to 90 
Days (IM 07-048) 

c. Action Memorandum 07-092: Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Right of Way 
Easement with Matanuska Electric Association (MEA) across Palmer Municipal 
Airport Lease Lot 33, Block 3 

2.   Minutes of Previous Meetings  
a. September 25, 2007, Regular Meeting 

 
E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 
 
 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          October 9, 2007 
                                                                                                                                Page 2 of 6 

F. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
 
John Leiner: 

• spoke to action memorandum 07-097; 
• commented on the Nome Police Department’s hiring of a police officer; 
• spoke of young girl who was scantily dressed and the subsequent rape of the girl; 
• voiced his regret over not receiving a report from the Special Counsel regarding charges 

against City Manager Allen; and 
• stated the contract against Mr. Allen should be stopped.  

 
G. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
H. BIDS  
 
I. ACTION MEMORANDA 
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum 07-094: Confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of William Kerslake 
and Michael Kircher to the City of Palmer Planning and Zoning Commission 
MOVED BY: Best To authorize action memorandum 07-094 
SECONDED BY: Erbey 

 
VOTE ON MOTION: Carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Erbey Vanover    
Chmielewski Best Hanson    

Combs      
 

Item 2 – Action Memorandum 07-091: Authorize the City Manager to Purchase a Motor Grader 
from Construction Machinery Industrial, LLC in the Amount of $257,385, Using the Joint 
Purchasing Provisions Provided in Palmer Municipal Code 3.21.240 
MOVED BY: Vanover To authorize action memorandum 07-091 
SECONDED BY: Erbey 

 
Council Member Pippel: 

• inquired of the original estimate of the vehicle. 
 
City Manager Allen: 

• commented on the cost of the vehicle; and 
• spoke of the elimination of a disc player.  

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Erbey Vanover    
Chmielewski Best Hanson    

Combs      
 
Item 3 – Action Memorandum 07-096: Authorize Donation to Palmer High School Hockey 
Program in the Amount of $500 and Direct the City Manager to Prepare an Amendment to the 
2007 Fiscal Year Budget to Appropriate the Funds 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          October 9, 2007 
                                                                                                                                Page 3 of 6 

MOVED BY: Vanover To authorize action memorandum 07-096 
SECONDED BY: Erbey 

 
Council Member Hanson declared a substantial financial of interest due to his receipt of monies 
as the head Palmer Hockey coach. The council concurred with the declaration.  
 

VOTE ON MOTION: Carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Erbey Vanover    
Chmielewski Best Combs    

 
Clerk’s note: Following the resolution of action memorandum 07-096, Council Member Hanson 
rejoined the council.  
 
Item 4 – Action Memorandum 07-095: Approve a Full-time, Permanent City Manager’s 
Administrative Assistant Position and Direct the City Manager to Prepare an Amendment to the 
2007 Fiscal Year Budget to Appropriate the Funds for the Position 
MOVED BY: Best To authorize action memorandum 07-095 
SECONDED BY: Vanover 

 
City Manager Allen: 

• commented on the role of the Assistant to the City Manager and the duties assigned to the 
position; 

• voiced his need for assistance with administrative matters; 
• highlighted the administrative assistant’s job description; 
• stated the duties of the current Assistant to the City Manager position had not been 

determined; 
• spoke of the Efficiency Review Team and its future recommendations for the position; 
• stated when the budget was complete and the report received from the Efficiency Review 

Team, the entire state of staffing would provided to the council; 
• explained the technical and executive nature of the administrative assistant position; 
• stated his intent to portray the City’s administration as a professional team; and 
• described the efficiency review team process as non-threatening to employees.  

 
Council Member Pippel: 

• inquired of the cost of the administrative assistant position; 
• stated the monies to fund the position would come from unappropriated surplus funds; 

and 
• commented on the role of the Manager in personnel functions. 

 
Council Member Hanson: 

• inquired of the pay range of the other administrative assistants; 
• asked what would happen to the current staff member; 
• inquired of the long term plan for the organizational structure; 
• stated his desire to look at the entire staffing picture before looking at bits and pieces; 
• voiced concern of the pay range and stated the importance of understanding the big 

picture; and 
• commented on the need to understand the role of the displaced Assistant to the City 

Manager. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          October 9, 2007 
                                                                                                                                Page 4 of 6 

Council Member Chmielewski: 
• asked when the meeting of the review team would occur; 
• inquired of the current assistant’s duties and the continuation of those duties; and 
• asked how the position would be funded.  

 
Council Member Vanover: 

• spoke of the volume and sensitivity of the data handled by a position of the nature of the 
City Manager’s administrative assistant. 

 
Mayor Combs: 

• highlighted his experience with hiring assistant’s and the professional administrative 
assistant. 

 
Attorney Gatti: 

• commented on the need for an administrative assistant would act as a professional 
compliment to the Manager. 

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Carried by 6-1 voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Erbey Vanover Hanson   
Chmielewski Best Combs    

 
Item 5 – Action Memorandum 07-097: Approve the City’s Manager Contract 
MOVED BY: Erbey To authorize action memorandum 07-097 
SECONDED BY: Best 

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Erbey Vanover    
Chmielewski Best Hanson    

Combs      
 

J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 

 
Item 1 – Resolution No. 07-014: Authorizing an Amendment to the Terms of the $1,800,000 
City of Palmer Revenue Bond, 2000 (Southcentral Foundation Project), to Change Certain Terms 
of Said Bond and Authorizing Other Related Matters (IM 07-037) 
MOVED BY: Erbey To adopt resolution no. 07-014 
SECONDED BY: Vanover 

 
Attorney Gatti: 

• commented on the variable interest rate; 
• spoke of the City’s compensation for the action; 
• described the action as a housekeeping matter; and 
• spoke of the City’s receipt of a small fee and payment of attorney fees. 

 
Council Member Hanson: 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          October 9, 2007 
                                                                                                                                Page 5 of 6 

• voiced his desire to receive additional funds; and 
• stated he wished the Foundation had built in Palmer as they had originally stated.  

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Carried by 5-2 voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Erbey Vanover Hanson  Best  
Chmielewski Combs     

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
City Manager Allen reported on the following items: 

• Revised 2008 Fiscal Year Budget schedule; 
• Executive Management Team; 
• Library Activities; 
• Palmer Municipal Airport Activities; 
• Public Works Department Activities; 
• Citizen Efficiency Review Team. 

 
M. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
City Clerk Bower reported on the following: 

• 2007 Election; 
• December 25 meeting; 
• October 16, 4 p.m. special meeting; 
• October 16, 6 p.m. mandatory special meeting.  

 
N. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Combs reported on the following items: 

• Library Funding; 
• State Cross Country Championships; 
• Palmer Urban Traffic Plan; 
• Sister City Delegate; 
• Palmer Chamber of Commerce report; 
• Mat-Su College Lunch; 
• Senior Center project; 
• Vacation – October 10 – October 24, 2007.  

 
O. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 

• Items for the City Manager’s Report. 
 
P. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
 
 
 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          October 9, 2007 
                                                                                                                                Page 6 of 6 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Chmielewski: 

• inquired of the Alaska Municipal League resolution process and the City’s opportunity to 
provide input; and 

• spoke of the opportunity to be proactive in affairs which affect the City.  
 
Council Member Vanover: 

• stated Felton Street was in wonderful condition; and 
• voiced agreement with Council Member Pippel regarding cell phone usage while driving.  

 
Council Member Erbey: 

• suggested the City send notices to citizens reminding them of the importance of keeping 
the fire hydrants clear of snow and debris; 

• commented on the number of dirt roads which contained potholes; and 
• suggested the roads be smoothed out prior to the winter.  

 
Council Member Hanson: 

• thanked the council for their recognition of the value of the Palmer Hockey brochure and 
activities for kids; 

• stated it would be interesting what type of role the council would play in the new city 
government; and 

• thanked everyone for their support of Palmer Moose. 
 
Council Member Pippel: 

• wished Palmer Moose good luck in the upcoming games; 
• stated the use of teleconferencing was driving him crazy; 
• suggested the code be amended to preclude teleconferencing; 
• voiced his hope that the new administration was hard at work encouraging the Borough 

offices to remain in Palmer; 
• stated the City can provide ethical training but that people are either ethical or they are 

not; 
• commented on the use of cell phones and accidents caused by accidents; and 
• suggested an ordinance prohibiting the use of cell phones in the City.  

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the council, the meeting adjourned at 8:44 p.m. 
 
Approved this twenty-third day of October, 2007. 

 
 
____________________________________ 

       John C. Combs, Mayor  
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Janette M. Bower, CMC, City Clerk 

jbower
New Stamp

jbower
New Stamp


	City of Palmer, Alaska

